
 

 

 

Dare County Tourism Board Meeting 
 

Thursday, March 21, 2024 
 

9:00 a.m. 
 
 

Curtis Creech Memorial Boardroom 
Outer Banks Visitors Bureau Administrative Offices 

One Visitors Center Circle 
Manteo, NC 27954 



 

 

DARE COUNTY TOURISM BOARD MEETING 

THURSDAY, MARCH 21, 2024 

9:00 A.M. 

OUTER BANKS VISITORS BUREAU ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

ONE VISITORS CENTER CIRCLE 

MANTEO, NC 27954 

 

 

AGENDA 
 

 

I. Call to Order    

 
II. Pledge of Allegiance & Moment of Silence  

 
III. Approval of Agenda 

     

IV. Approval of Minutes from the February 15, 2024 Meeting 

 

V. Public Comments   
 

VI. Presentation: Love the Beach, Respect the Ocean-Drew Pearson 

 

VII. Budget & Finance Report 

1. Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget Amendment 

2. Monthly Reports  

 

VIII. Chair/Steering Committee Report   

  1.    Fireworks Grant Award Recommendations 

2.  Long Term Restricted Fund Grants Extension Request Recommendation - Graveyard of the   

Atlantic Museum 

   

IX. Grants Committee Report 

1. Event Grant Award Recommendations 

     

X. Outer Banks Visitors Bureau Updates    

 

XI.        Old Business 

1. Boardwalk Discussion 

 

XII.      New Business 

  

XIII.     Board Member Comments 

   

XIV. Set Date, Time, and Place of Next Meeting   

 

XV. Adjournment 

 

 



 

February 15, 2024 Dare County Tourism Board  1 

RECORD OF MINUTES 

DARE COUNTY TOURISM BOARD 

THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 15, 2024 

9:00 A.M. 

OUTER BANKS VISITORS BUREAU ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

MANTEO, NC 27954 

 

 

ATTENDING:  Monica Thibodeau, Chair; Tod Clissold, Treasurer; Dennis Robinson, Assistant 

Treasurer; Tonia Cohen, Secretary; Mark Batenic, John Head, Richard Hess, Tess Judge, Wally Overman, 

Mike Siers, and Jay Wheless, Legal Counsel.  

 

EXCUSED ABSENCE: David Hines, Vice Chair; Mark Ballog, and Terry Gray. 

 

STAFF: 

Lee Nettles, Executive Director  

Diane Bognich, Director of Administration  

Amy Wood, Clerk to the Board/Administrative Specialist  

Lorrie Love, Tourism Sales and Events Manager  

Jeff Schwartzenburg, Community Engagement Manager 

Aaron Tuell, Public Relations Manager 

 

OTHERS ATTENDING: Luke Halton, The OBX Way.  

 

The meeting was called to order at 9:01 a.m.  The Board then recited the pledge of allegiance, followed 

by a moment of silence.  

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Mr. Siers moved to approve the agenda. Second by Mr. Hess. There was 

no discussion. The motion passed unanimously (10-0). 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Ms. Judge moved to approve the meeting minutes from January 18, 2024 

meeting.   Second by Mr. Head. There was no discussion.  The motion passed unanimously (10-0). 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  There were no public comments made. No written comments were received.  

 

STEERING COMMITTEE REPORT: The Board reviewed: 

 

• Tourism Impact Grant Extension request from the Town of Nags Head.  The Town of Nags Head 

requested an extension to June 30, 2025 to complete the Whalebone Park restroom.  While the 

Town does have the design and plan in place, they wish to work in the shoulder season as not to 

impact visitors to the park in season. Following review, Mr. Overman moved to grant the 

extension to June 30, 2025. Second by Mr. Hess.  During discussion, it was noted that the 

extension would not have an impact on the budget as the awarded amount would be encumbered.  

There was no further discussion. The motion passed unanimously (10-0). 

 

• Long Term Restricted Fund and Tourism Impact Grant Guideline modifications.  Staff reviewed 

the changes made to both the Long Term Restricted Fund and the Tourism Impact Grant 

guidelines, which clarify what expenses are not covered by the grants, extension request 

deadlines, and materials submission.   
 

Mr. Hess moved to adopt the modified Long Term Restricted Fund guidelines. Second by Mr. Siers. 

There was no discussion. The motion passed unanimously (10-0). 



 

February 15, 2024 Dare County Tourism Board  2 

Mr. Siers moved to adopt the modified Tourism Impact Grant guidelines. Second by Mr. Hess. There was 

no discussion. The motion passed unanimously (10-0). 

 

The Board reviewed the letter of support for the Area of Environmental Concern status for Jockey’s 

Ridge. Mr. Siers moved to approve the letter of support. Second by Mr. Head. There was no discussion. 

The motion passed unanimously (10-0). 

 

BUDGET AND FINANCE REPORT:  Mr. Clissold reviewed the meals and occupancy receipts 

received.  Receipts for fiscal year 2023-2024 were up 2.65 % compared to 2022-2023 actual receipts.   

 

OUTER BANKS VISITORS BUREAU UPDATES:  Lee Nettles: 

• Noted the training burn at Pamlico Jacks was completed and debris at the site cleaned up 

• Attended the State of the County and the Outer Banks Chamber of Annual meetings, Outer Banks 

Community Foundation ribbon cutting, and upcoming North Carolina Travel and Tourism Board 

meetings 

• Touched on the first meeting of the Long Range Tourism Management Plan Special Committee 

meeting 

• Reviewed the marketing dashboard. Visitation reports will be sent at a later date as several sites 

had not reported their numbers.  The Board discussed how rentals were shaping up for the season, 

and more Airbnb properties switching over to long term rentals. 

 

Jeff Schwartzenberg reviewed the first Long Range Tourism Management Plan Special Committee 

meeting and topics covered in that meeting.  

 

Lorrie Love noted student groups are returning to the area after a hiatus and the 2nd annual Soft Shell 

week.  

 

Aaron Tuell reviewed a recent appearance on the Hampton Roads show, and other public relations efforts. 

 

OLD BUSINESS:  There was no old business before the Board. 

 

NEW BUSINESS:  There was no new business before the Board. 

 

BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS: The Chair noted the Town of Duck retreat and her representation on 

the housing task force. 

 

Ms. Cohen noted one student group had checked in and expected more throughout the spring.  She also 

noted hotels were not seeing the usual bump in reservations around tax refund time. 

 

Mr. Siers thanked the Board for the grant extension. 

 

Mr. Overman thanked the Board for the Wall That Heals grant and encouraged everyone to vote in the 

upcoming primaries.  

 

Mr. Head and Mr. Hess thanked staff for highlighting key points in the budget & finance report.  

 

Mr. Batenic asked if the new guidelines would be shared with the municipalities [they will be shared] and 

asked about retail figures.  

 

 

 



 

February 15, 2024 Dare County Tourism Board  3 

SET DATE, TIME, AND PLACE OF NEXT MEETING:  The next meeting is scheduled for 

Thursday, March 21, 2024 at 9:00 a.m. in Curtis Creech Memorial Boardroom, Outer Banks Visitors 

Bureau Administrative Office, Manteo, NC. 

 

The Chair asked if there was any further business before the Board. Hearing none, the Chair adjourned 

the meeting at 10:34 a.m. 

 

ATTESTED: 

 

 

 

_________________________________________________ 
Clerk, Dare County Tourism Board 























































July 4th Firework Grant Requests Fiscal Year 2023/2024

Organization & Project

 Total 

Contract 

Eligible Grant 

Request

Recommended 

Award  Comments (July 5, 2024 is raindate for all requests) 

Avon Property Owner's Association 29,750.00$    14,875.00$       14,875.00$       Pyrostar Entertainment 

Location:  Avon Pier Prior Year Award: $14,525.00

Town of Kill Devil Hills 24,800.00$    12,400.00$       12,400.00$       Pyrostar Entertainment 

Location: Avalon Fishing Pier Prior Year Award: $12,200.00

Town of Manteo 58,000.00$    19,000.00$       19,000.00$       Pyrotechnico contract $38,000 for fireworks. Barge $20,000.

Location: Barge in Shallowbag Bay Prior Year Award: $14,525.00

Town of Nags Head 27,500.00$    13,750.00$       13,750.00$       Zambelli. This is last year of multi-year contract.

Location: Nags Head Pier Prior Year Award: $13,750

Total Amount Requested 140,050.00$  60,025.00$       60,025.00$       

ALL APPLICATIONS ON FILE FOR REVIEW

PENDING BOARD APPROVAL

Beginning Balance 55,000.00$       

Pending Budget Amendment 5,025.00$         

      Total Available 60,025.00$       

Amount Recommended 60,025.00$       

Remaining Funds -$                 



 

 

 
 

 
 
March 4, 2024 
 
Ms. Diane Bognich 
Director of Administration 
The Outer Banks Visitors Bureau 
 
Subject: Graveyard of the Atlantic Museum Exhibit Project 
Grant Time Extension and Project Milestone Dates 
 
Dear Ms. Bognich: 
 
I hope this letter finds you well.  I am writing on behalf of the Graveyard of the Atlantic Museum and 
their Friend’s group to formally request an extension for the Exhibit Renovation Project Grant final 
acceptance date.  The construction of this long-awaited project is slowly wrapping up and we anticipate 
having final acceptance by April 15, 2024.  Due to several reasons beyond our control, the project has 
several construction time extensions.  The project was approximately 50% complete on the original 
Grant final acceptance of June 30, 2023.  We are approximately 99% complete with very minor items left 
to finish.  Please find below the Project Milestones for this project.  As I am sure you are aware, the 
project was funding through several entities including the National Marine Sanctury, Dare County, Dare 
County Tourism Board, and the State of North Carolina.  The Total construction cost for this project was 
$4,960,046. I am also attaching a few photos of the project for your reference. 
 
DESIGN: 
Initial Design Funding: January 2009 - National Marine Sanctuary Fund (NOAA) 
Design Start: December 2009 – Community Meeting 
Design Contract: April 2010 – PBC&L (now Clark Nexsen). Exhibit Design Firm: Riggs Ward. 
Design Approval: May 28, 2021 – Construction Documents approved for bidding.  
 
CONSTRUCTION: 
Full Construction Funding: January 2022 - SCIF 2021 Legislative Fund 
Bid Opening: May 11, 2022  
Construction Contract Approved for Award: July 13, 2022, AR Chesson Construction Company (General 
Contractor) and Color-Ad, Inc (Exhibit Fabricator) 
Pre-Construction Conference: September 19, 2022 
Notice to Proceed: September 20, 2022 
Anticipated Completion Date: March 28, 2024 
Anticipated Project Acceptance: April 15, 2024 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Erin Lawrence, PE  
Director, Capital Projects Unit 

At their March 12, 2024 meeting, the Steering Committee
recommended granting an extension to June 30, 2024. 























































 

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT REPORT 
MARCH 21, 2024 
 

Long-Range Tourism Management Plan  
 

Special Committee Meeting Update: March 13, 2024 

Following committee Chairman Dennis Robinson’s welcome and a Community Engagement report, 

the following topics were discussed: 

• Outer Banks Pledge: The group reviewed a revised Pledge draft, which reflected the 

feedback that was recently provided by several committee members and OBVB staff 

members. Additional input was provided during the meeting, which will lead to another draft 

that will be shared very soon with the committee prior to sharing with the DCTB. 

• Committee Structure and Role in the LRTMP Implementation Process: With a large 

group (22 committee members) – representing such a varied mix of industries, professional 

associations and roles within the community – and an ambitious plan, it was important to 

have a strategic discussion at this time, focused on how to best structure the committee so 

that member time and talents are being maximized. Following that dialogue, a parallel 

conversation was initiated on determining the next steps on how to best prioritize the focus 

of the committee as the implementation phase continues. 

• Next Steps: 

o Identify the local groups, stakeholders and individuals (including our Special 

Committee members) who are already working on projects and initiatives that 

overlap with the strategies within the LRTMP so that we can learn from this work, not 

duplicate efforts and find ways to collaborate, contribute and support future work. 

o Gather data from these various groups to better inform and educate the Special 

Committee on aspects that apply directly to the strategic goals in the LRTMP, which 

will help to inform the group of any knowledge or information gaps that the 

committee, DCTB and OBVB can help fill (additional studies, expert speakers, etc.). 

o Identify LRTMP strategies and tactics that can be prioritized to accomplish in 2024. 

The next meeting of the Special Committee is scheduled for Wednesday, April 10, 2024 at 9:15am.  
 

Community Engagement & Outreach 

Community Meetings & Events 

2/28/24 – Vacation Rental Management Association Workshop – presenter 

3/1/24 – OBX Community Service/Non-Profit Collaborative – host 

3/5/24 – Town of Manteo - Trail Town Stewardship Program Assessment (Outdoor NC partnership) 

3/14/24 – Dare County State of the Child Conference – attendee  

3/17/24 to 3/19/24 – Visit NC Tourism Conference (Greenville, NC) – attendee  

3/19/24 – Outer Banks Home Builders Association Meeting (General Membership) – presenter 

3/20/24 – Outer Banks Chamber of Commerce ‘Leadership OBX’ Tourism Day – presenter 

3/26/24 – NPO Strategy Session #2 (OBVB/OBCF/Outer Banks Forever) – attendee  

3/27/24 – Jockey’s Ridge State Park Community Room Ribbon Cutting – attendee 

3/28/24 – Coastal Environmental Educators Network (CEEN) Meeting - attendee 

4/11/24 – NPO Mission Mixer (Outer Banks Brewing Station) – co-host with OBCF 

4/20/24 – Earth Fair OBX Celebration (Jockey’s Ridge State Park) – partner/exhibitor 

5/18/24 – Our State Magazine Outer Banks Voluntourism Event (The Elizabethan Gardens) – partner  



 

Outer Banks Non-Profit Community Updates 

February 2024 eNewsletter 
 

2nd Annual Non-Profit Mission Mixer Set for Thursday, April 11 
The Outer Banks Community Foundation and the Outer Banks Visitors 
Bureau are pleased to announce that the 2nd Annual Non-Profit 
Organization Mission Mixer will take place on Thursday, April 11, 2024 at 
5pm at the Outer Banks Brewing Station.Admission is FREE for Outer 
Banks non-profits. The event is an opportunity to network with others who 
are making a difference in our community. 
 
Mark Ballog, owner of Lucky 12 Tavern, will be the featured speaker and 
will take you through his recent collaborations with non-profits and the 12 
Bars of Christmas holiday bar tour activation, which helped raise more 
than $28,000 for local organizations. We hope to see you on April 11! 
 

_____________ 
 
DCTB Special Committee:  
February 7 LRTMP Meeting Recap 
The Dare County Tourism Board Special Committee held its 
first meeting on February 7 at the Outer Banks Visitors 
Bureau administrative offices in Manteo. The Committee 
was established to evaluate the strategic goals of the Long-
Range Tourism Management Plan (LRTMP) and make 
implementation recommendations to the Dare County 
Tourism Board.  
 
Following member introductions and an overview of the LRTMP planning process, the focus shifted to 
reviewing and discussing various aspects of Strategic Goal #1: Strengthening Resident and Visitor 
Engagement. Included in this discussion was a look at some of the work that is underway to connect 
visitors with area non-profits. 
 

_____________ 
 
 

Social Impact Spotlight: Random Acts of Kindness 
A recent video post on the Outer Banks Visitors Bureau social media 
pages spotlights several positive ways to celebrate Happy Random Acts 
of Kindness Week – from donating to a local non-profit organization to 
supporting local businesses. 
 

Non-Profit Profiles & Voluntourism 
Did you know that as a member of the Outer Banks non-profit 
community, your organization can have a profile included in our non-
profit directory on OuterBanks.org? In addition, if your organization 
offers volunteer opportunities, you can also add a 'Volunteer' link to that 
profile. Our goal is to strengthen the connection between our visitors 
and local organizations who make the Outer Banks such a special 
place. For more information, contact Allison Wyant, Website and 
Database Manager, at wyant@outerbanks.org. 

https://conta.cc/3UPU5Ro
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001g2POhcU-hDZTqzzvCMyvro8L5jRPaQpDlVEJeuFn7CpNvJbqu0ezpE63mzIjwEpjMj-6jpt1PmG1AQZB6TA2LDkLAuoJ-VytTKQKNZehTwF56W-Yz1Ga6UndS0Av1ct0mU275pCG4voKhKMTwlv1pIY9hOg_qX7tIj5UFvkyqjQQxLbU4wekhut3DKZhmS3TpkSjznaHxqmU0Opz_VPGkw==&c=MCWapLcXsAutf7iwB_Fto5VSS8Db-eHE0mNWxe8G52fAGtCh4KL9zg==&ch=jreizNQ-wDghi3jMpyICgg6YIpc-8MiWsPSZ_TqAJwDRs3AgFNIxtg==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001g2POhcU-hDZTqzzvCMyvro8L5jRPaQpDlVEJeuFn7CpNvJbqu0ezpE63mzIjwEpjMj-6jpt1PmG1AQZB6TA2LDkLAuoJ-VytTKQKNZehTwF56W-Yz1Ga6UndS0Av1ct0mU275pCG4voKhKMTwlv1pIY9hOg_qX7tIj5UFvkyqjQQxLbU4wekhut3DKZhmS3TpkSjznaHxqmU0Opz_VPGkw==&c=MCWapLcXsAutf7iwB_Fto5VSS8Db-eHE0mNWxe8G52fAGtCh4KL9zg==&ch=jreizNQ-wDghi3jMpyICgg6YIpc-8MiWsPSZ_TqAJwDRs3AgFNIxtg==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001g2POhcU-hDZTqzzvCMyvro8L5jRPaQpDlVEJeuFn7CpNvJbqu0ezpE63mzIjwEpjf7hEd_-c9jCiqYPtBn9wepKovcPRxHpjbmZV4rlRRuE2lpgF552J9HHhmkk1RyEvTKs6srSEuBFtm6ATiQ7nVw==&c=MCWapLcXsAutf7iwB_Fto5VSS8Db-eHE0mNWxe8G52fAGtCh4KL9zg==&ch=jreizNQ-wDghi3jMpyICgg6YIpc-8MiWsPSZ_TqAJwDRs3AgFNIxtg==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001g2POhcU-hDZTqzzvCMyvro8L5jRPaQpDlVEJeuFn7CpNvJbqu0ezpE63mzIjwEpjf7hEd_-c9jCiqYPtBn9wepKovcPRxHpjbmZV4rlRRuE2lpgF552J9HHhmkk1RyEvTKs6srSEuBFtm6ATiQ7nVw==&c=MCWapLcXsAutf7iwB_Fto5VSS8Db-eHE0mNWxe8G52fAGtCh4KL9zg==&ch=jreizNQ-wDghi3jMpyICgg6YIpc-8MiWsPSZ_TqAJwDRs3AgFNIxtg==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001g2POhcU-hDZTqzzvCMyvro8L5jRPaQpDlVEJeuFn7CpNvJbqu0ezpCTljqsRaibQT_xlUn1OEX7kvws8YYytXAP4mKTjSZDUUixjbImQduBMKBVAeCoGNgfsKH7Lor83Lr1g_fdUyk3sNV2btIQiFnfRbOk4SZPUtTgBb81so2S8Te8O23vgdYoFF_DbsubzBn-kuOtudPjz3pkqODMNwQ==&c=MCWapLcXsAutf7iwB_Fto5VSS8Db-eHE0mNWxe8G52fAGtCh4KL9zg==&ch=jreizNQ-wDghi3jMpyICgg6YIpc-8MiWsPSZ_TqAJwDRs3AgFNIxtg==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001g2POhcU-hDZTqzzvCMyvro8L5jRPaQpDlVEJeuFn7CpNvJbqu0ezpCTljqsRaibQT_xlUn1OEX7kvws8YYytXAP4mKTjSZDUUixjbImQduBMKBVAeCoGNgfsKH7Lor83Lr1g_fdUyk3sNV2btIQiFnfRbOk4SZPUtTgBb81so2S8Te8O23vgdYoFF_DbsubzBn-kuOtudPjz3pkqODMNwQ==&c=MCWapLcXsAutf7iwB_Fto5VSS8Db-eHE0mNWxe8G52fAGtCh4KL9zg==&ch=jreizNQ-wDghi3jMpyICgg6YIpc-8MiWsPSZ_TqAJwDRs3AgFNIxtg==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001g2POhcU-hDZTqzzvCMyvro8L5jRPaQpDlVEJeuFn7CpNvJbqu0ezpE63mzIjwEpjUvbemgS3Nq1SeKiesfXU02WThzsq2zp9IXHETVxs5q9qQkPTeZj5xwKs93ctpGyqXCOa0RpOZC7w2gOhredaGmo8ADW8rHZECkFc0z6ILcsuBh758qgR6eG8fIaZsNRP&c=MCWapLcXsAutf7iwB_Fto5VSS8Db-eHE0mNWxe8G52fAGtCh4KL9zg==&ch=jreizNQ-wDghi3jMpyICgg6YIpc-8MiWsPSZ_TqAJwDRs3AgFNIxtg==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001g2POhcU-hDZTqzzvCMyvro8L5jRPaQpDlVEJeuFn7CpNvJbqu0ezpE63mzIjwEpjUvbemgS3Nq1SeKiesfXU02WThzsq2zp9IXHETVxs5q9qQkPTeZj5xwKs93ctpGyqXCOa0RpOZC7w2gOhredaGmo8ADW8rHZECkFc0z6ILcsuBh758qgR6eG8fIaZsNRP&c=MCWapLcXsAutf7iwB_Fto5VSS8Db-eHE0mNWxe8G52fAGtCh4KL9zg==&ch=jreizNQ-wDghi3jMpyICgg6YIpc-8MiWsPSZ_TqAJwDRs3AgFNIxtg==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001g2POhcU-hDZTqzzvCMyvro8L5jRPaQpDlVEJeuFn7CpNvJbqu0ezpEhtyVwaHl-kwtyFKVOr5B5qQG8sHmxeiB65zp0PjrjP73hdUFH7VdQt-1w5toEqoWg00wx4IWaAMASZSkwqd_Mu4RTwBUupE4b7xyfmF1aXBcWCiHSHyPA=&c=MCWapLcXsAutf7iwB_Fto5VSS8Db-eHE0mNWxe8G52fAGtCh4KL9zg==&ch=jreizNQ-wDghi3jMpyICgg6YIpc-8MiWsPSZ_TqAJwDRs3AgFNIxtg==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001g2POhcU-hDZTqzzvCMyvro8L5jRPaQpDlVEJeuFn7CpNvJbqu0ezpEhtyVwaHl-kwtyFKVOr5B5qQG8sHmxeiB65zp0PjrjP73hdUFH7VdQt-1w5toEqoWg00wx4IWaAMASZSkwqd_Mu4RTwBUupE4b7xyfmF1aXBcWCiHSHyPA=&c=MCWapLcXsAutf7iwB_Fto5VSS8Db-eHE0mNWxe8G52fAGtCh4KL9zg==&ch=jreizNQ-wDghi3jMpyICgg6YIpc-8MiWsPSZ_TqAJwDRs3AgFNIxtg==
mailto:wyant@outerbanks.org
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001g2POhcU-hDZTqzzvCMyvro8L5jRPaQpDlVEJeuFn7CpNvJbqu0ezpE63mzIjwEpjMj-6jpt1PmG1AQZB6TA2LDkLAuoJ-VytTKQKNZehTwF56W-Yz1Ga6UndS0Av1ct0mU275pCG4voKhKMTwlv1pIY9hOg_qX7tIj5UFvkyqjQQxLbU4wekhut3DKZhmS3TpkSjznaHxqmU0Opz_VPGkw==&c=MCWapLcXsAutf7iwB_Fto5VSS8Db-eHE0mNWxe8G52fAGtCh4KL9zg==&ch=jreizNQ-wDghi3jMpyICgg6YIpc-8MiWsPSZ_TqAJwDRs3AgFNIxtg==
https://vimeo.com/914477183
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001g2POhcU-hDZTqzzvCMyvro8L5jRPaQpDlVEJeuFn7CpNvJbqu0ezpE63mzIjwEpjUvbemgS3Nq1SeKiesfXU02WThzsq2zp9IXHETVxs5q9qQkPTeZj5xwKs93ctpGyqXCOa0RpOZC7w2gOhredaGmo8ADW8rHZECkFc0z6ILcsuBh758qgR6eG8fIaZsNRP&c=MCWapLcXsAutf7iwB_Fto5VSS8Db-eHE0mNWxe8G52fAGtCh4KL9zg==&ch=jreizNQ-wDghi3jMpyICgg6YIpc-8MiWsPSZ_TqAJwDRs3AgFNIxtg==


TOURISM SALES & EVENTS | INDUSTRY RELATIONS ACTIVITY – MARCH 2024 
 
TOURISM SALES | Upcoming Group Planner FAM Tour:  
Star Destinations | April 23 -25, 2024: The Tourism Bureau is excited to welcome 18 Group Planners from Iowa 
for a 2-night familiarization (FAM) tour of the stunning Outer Banks. For many of these planners, it will be their 
first time experiencing the beauty of our region. They specialize in organizing travel for bank travel clubs and are 
eager to explore the offerings of our area. This FAM tour, spanning two states and starting in Richmond, will 
showcase the unique attractions and activities of the Outer Banks. Our staff is currently finalizing the itinerary 
and will share it with the Board shortly. We are pleased to extend invitations to Board Member to attend the 
following Group FAM dinner events: 
 

• Tuesday, April 23rd | Basnight’s Lone Cedar Café | 6:30pm 
• Wednesday, April 24th | Blue Moon Grille | 6:00pm 

 
Please let Amy or Lorrie if you are interested in attending one of these dinner opportunities.  
               
TOURISM SALES | Future Trade Show Dates and Locations:  
Bureau Staff is currently scheduled for the following industry shows: 

• March 17-19, 2024: Visit NC 365, Greenville, NC 
• March 20 – 24, 2024: STS Domestic Showcase, Little Rock, AR 

               
TOURISM SALES | Request for Proposals: The Bureau sent out the following request for 
proposal recently to our industry partners:  
 

• Prime Tours, June 1 - 6, 2025, Group Tour, 25-30 people, 20 rooms, group meals, attractions, activities 
and shopping.    

• Guilford Preparatory Academy, May 9 – 10, 2024, Student group, 25 students and chaperones, 8-10 
rooms, group meals, attractions and activities. 

               
INDUSTRY RELATIONS | OBX Soft-Shell Week| May 13 – 18, 2024:  
Bureau staff, along with Board Member Mark Ballog and several 
restaurateurs, have once again initiated efforts to highlight one of the 
Outer Banks' most beloved delicacies: softshell crabs. With many 
restaurants featuring their own rendition of a softshell crab dish during this 
period, we're proud to declare it as a weeklong event! We're currently in 
the process of enlisting restaurants to participate in our crab crawl 
interactive map. Patrons will still get to vote for their favorite OBX Softshell 
dish from participating establishments. Participation is free of charge. If 
you're interested in joining us, please don't hesitate to contact Lorrie Love, love@outerbanks.org  

 
“The Fun Starts When the Shell Comes Off” 

 
 

mailto:love@outerbanks.org


INDUSTRY RELATIONS | OBX Tourism Summit| Thursday, November 7, 2024:  
We're excited to share the date and location for the 10th 
Annual OBX Tourism Summit! Join us at the Pioneer 
Theatre in Manteo on Thursday, November 7th, from 
8:30 am to 3:00 pm. We're planning an engaging theme 
and lining up great speakers for this important event. 
Save the date and stay tuned for more details in the 
coming months! 
 
               
 
The Soundside Event Site | Calendar Attached:   
Staff continues to work with event planners for events at the Soundside Event Site. Please find attached the 
2024 Events Calendar for your review. Also attached is a flyer for our upcoming Spring Soundside Market on 
Saturday, March 30th, 12pm – 4pm.  

 
 



2024 Soundside Event Site Schedule

Name of Event Date of Event Event Times (times may change as event draws closer) Number of Atteedees Event Planner Site Reserved

Soundside Market Saturday, March 30, 2024  (rain date: Saturday, April 6) 9:00am-1:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time) Alex Brewer - 252-564-5251 Wednesday, June 19, 2024

OBX Rod and Custom Festival Friday, May 2- Saturday, May 4, 2024 10:00am - 6:00pm 500-750 Michael Tillett -252-305-5789 Tuesday, April 30 – Monday, May 6, 2024

Holy Ghost Fire Revival Friday, May 17-Sunday, May 19, 2024 7:00pm-11:00pm 250-500 Sharon Ethridge Friday, May 17-Sunday, May 19, 2024

Soundside Fun Fair Thursday, June 6-Sunday, June 9, 2024 5:00pm - 10:00pm 4000 - over all the event day; about 800 per night

Jody Caldwell - 757-620-8204; 
Sara Sampson-252.441.0614 

x2 Tuesday, June 4 – Monday, June 10, 2024

Soundside Market Wednesday, June 19, 2024  (rain date: Friday, June 21) 9:00am-1:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time) Alex Brewer - 252-564-5251 Wednesday, June 19, 2024

Soundside Market Wednesday, June 26, 2024  (rain date: Friday, June 28) 9:00am-1:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time) Alex Brewer - 252-564-5251 Wednesday, June 26, 2024

Last Friday Celebration Friday, June 28, 2024 4:00pm - 8:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time) Alex Brewer - 252-564-5251 Friday, June 28, 2024

Soundside Market Wednesday, July 3, 2024 (rain date: Friday, July 5) 9:00am-1:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time) Alex Brewer - 252-564-5251 Wednesday, July 3, 2024

Soundside Market Wednesday, July 10, 2024 (rain date: Friday, July 12) 9:00am-1:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time) Alex Brewer - 252-564-5251 Wednesday, July 10, 2024

Soundside Market Wednesday, July 17, 2024 (rain date: Friday, July 19) 9:00am-1:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time) Alex Brewer - 252-564-5251 Wednesday, July 17, 2024

Soundside Market Wednesday, July 24, 2024 (rain date: Friday, July 26) 9:00am-1:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time) Alex Brewer - 252-564-5251 Wednesday, July 24, 2024

Last Friday Celebration Friday, July 26, 2024 4:00pm - 8:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time) Alex Brewer - 252-564-5251 Friday, July 26, 2024

Soundside Market Wednesday, July 31, 2024 (rain date: Friday, August 2) 9:00am-1:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time) Alex Brewer - 252-564-5251 Wednesday, July 31, 2024

Soundside Market Wednesday, August 7, 2024 (rain date: Friday, August 9) 9:00am-1:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time) Alex Brewer - 252-564-5251 Wednesday, August 7, 2024

Soundside Market Wednesday, August 14, 2024 (rain date: Friday, August 16) 9:00am-1:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time) Alex Brewer - 252-564-5251 Wednesday, August 14, 2024

Soundside Market Sunday, September 1, 2024 9:00am-1:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time) Alex Brewer - 252-564-5251 Sunday, September 1, 2024

Outer Banks Sailing Association Friday, September 6 - Sunday, September 8, 2024 9:00am - 5:00pm 200 Hardy Peters - 252-489-3491 Friday, September 6 - Sunday, September 8, 2024

Sumospeed Beach Bash Saturday, September 14, 2024 11:00am - 6:00pm 1000- (Not all at one time) Nick Gressley - 757-681-2563 Saturday, September 14, 2024

OBX Jeep Invasion Friday, September 20 - Saturday, September 21, 2024 9:00am - 5:00pm 1000 Steve House - 252-305-9258 Thursday, September 19 - Sunday, September 22, 2024

Garage Band Charities Cruise Saturday, October 5, 2024 10:00am - 5:00pm 250-500 Michael Tillett -252-305-5789 Friday, October 4 - Saturday, October 5, 2024

Down the Road Surf & Art Festival Sunday, October 13, 2024 11:00am -8:00pm 1000 Ryan Jones Saturday, October 12 - Monday, October 14, 2024

Outer Banks Seafood Festival Saturday, October 19, 2024 10:30am - 6:00pm 8000-10000 (Not all at one time) Karen Brown - 252-564-2852 Wednesday, October 16-Wednesday, October 23, 2024

OBX Brewtag Monday, October 28, 2024 11:00am - 6:00pm 4000-5000 Sara Miller - 252-305-5561 Wednesday, October 23-Tuesday, October 29, 2024





 

 

Outer Banks Visitors Bureau 
 

PUBLIC RELATIONS REPORT: March 2024 
 

TELEVISION APPEARANCES 
  

Hampton Roads Show | Mar 8, 2024 Public Relations Manager Aaron Tuell returned to the Hampton 
Roads Show on WAVY 10 to promote travel to Dare County, this time accompanied by Jamie Chisholm, 
President of the Outer Banks Hotel/Motel Association and Dare County Commissioner for Hatteras Island, 
Danny Couch. This time, Aaron talked about events such as the OBX Polar Plunge and Kelly’s St. Patrick’s 
Day Parade along with the Outer Banks sense of community and welcome to our Virginia visitors. 
Chisholm went through the planning tips to consider when booking a local hotel and Couch highlighted 
the Graveyard of the Atlantic Museum, Outer Banks Scenic Byway and the surf fishing thick with 
opportunity. The next appearance is scheduled for March 28, 2024 to talk about Roanoke Island and 
Manteo. 
 
https://www.wavy.com/video/plan-your-vacation-on-the-outer-banks/9499809/ 

 
CONTENT SPONSORSHIP  

  
RV There Yet? | April 10-13, 2024 RV enthusiasts Patrice and her husband Kevin McCabe are returning to 
the Outer Banks to complete filming for the episode which will air in Season 3 of the show on Discovery 
beginning in April to a potential audience of 88 million. Once the 13-week run of Season 3 is done on 
Discovery, then it moves to MotorTrend with 76 million viewers plus a host of popular streaming 
channels. 
 
PRESS TRIPS 

 
Our State | Mar 8-11, 2024 The PR team hosted Katie Schanze, an associate editor at Our State magazine 
who writes a new column called Murphy to Manteo. Each month, she focuses on a different location along 
U.S. Highway 64, and in 2024, has several stories planned in Dare County. For the June issue, she’ll be 
focusing on Whalebone Junction, where Highway 64 meets Highway 12, once known as “the end of the 
road,” with plans to explore a few iconic spots in Nags Head, including Jennette’s Pier, the national 
seashore, etc. For the August issue, she’s hoping to take a guided black bear tour at Alligator River National 
Wildlife Refuge. For September, she will explore Roanoke Island/Manteo and do all the historical must-dos.  
 
Good Grit | May 6-10, 2024 The OBVB PR team is developing the itinerary for Good Grit magazine 
contributors Rebecca Deurlein and Nicole Letts. Letts is a freelance journalist with a focus on the modern 
Southern experience which includes penning stories about food, travel, lifestyle, and interiors. Her work 
has been published by some of the country’s top magazines and digital publications including BBC Travel, 
Fodor’s Travel, Good Grit, Southern Living, and many more. Rebecca Deurlein is a freelance writer whose 
work is featured in Travel & Leisure, Better Homes & Gardens, Atlas Obscura, Fodor's, The Huffington Post, 
Good Grit and many more. 
 
EARNED MEDIA 

 
Global Golf Post | Feb 2024 “Inner Peace on the Outer Banks” Editor John Steinbreder recounts his return 
to Dare County some 50 years following a summer working with the National Park Service in 1974. Aaron 
assisted with John’s travel itinerary which included golf coverage for which he’s known. The newsletter 
has a circulation of 500K. https://bit.ly/4c6FTtc 
 

https://www.ourstate.com/topics/travel/murphy-to-manteo/
https://bit.ly/4c6FTtc


 

 

Global Golf Post | Feb 2024 “Culture and Cuisine on Carolina Coast” by John Steinbreder. When John 
lived on the Outer Banks in 1974, Duck was little more than a backwater with no restaurants. Now, 
travelers will find a thriving community with a strong culinary culture. https://bit.ly/43o6G0b 
 
Our State | Feb 2024 “24 Restaurants to Visit on a Special Occasion” – The Blue Point, Duck NC 
Watch the sun set over the water and dig into jumbo lump crab, oyster stew, and seared sea scallops at 
this seafood restaurant perched on the edge of Currituck Sound. https://bit.ly/3TAXQJp 
 
Southern Living | Mar 2024 “Four Beach Getaways with Homes Big Enough for the Whole Family” 
Rebecca Deurlein, who is visiting May 6-10, wrote this new piece and we connected her with the Twiddy 
team given the story angle. https://bit.ly/3wTqNqU 

 
EARNED MEDIA – IN DEVELOPMENT 

 
ConventionSouth Magazine | May 2024 Writer Paige Townley is working on a story for the May issue of 
the group trade publication about islands of the South that would be ideal for hosting meetings/events. 
Tourism Sales and Events Manager Lorrie Love and Aaron teamed up to provide her information and 
quotes for the upcoming spring issue due out in May. 

 
Select Traveler | May 2024 Writer Cynthia Barnes interviewed Public Relations Manager Aaron Tuell for 
the group trade publication focused on banker travel and bank travel clubs. The story will be a roundup of 
destinations which have notable historic events. 
 
Our State | June 2024 Chloe Klingstedt is an assistant editor at Our State magazine. We assisted with her 
with travel itinerary in February for coverage of the Outer Banks in the June 2024 issue. It will include the 
Hatteras Island Fishing Pier in Rodanthe and the Bodie Island Lighthouse. 
 
Fodor’s Travel | Sep 2024 Aaron and the PR Team assisted a writer from the travel enthusiast publisher 
who is now working on a North Carolina story to come out September 2024. 

 
MEDIA MARKETPLACES 
 
Visit North Carolina Tourism Conference | Mar 17-19, 2024 – Aaron will have select appointments with 
state media personalities and producers, as well as a few from international markets at the annual Visit 
North Carolina Tourism Conference is the state's premier travel industry event. Bringing together more 
than 500 of the state’s tourism industry leaders, the conference provides opportunities to catch up on the 
latest trends and issues facing the travel industry, hear insights from industry experts and network with 
other travel and tourism professionals. Greenville, NC 
 
Travel South Global Week | April 8-11, 2023 Aaron is joining the VisitNC publicists and other state PR pros 
for an international media conference organized by Travel South. Aaron has a full docket of appointments 
with media from Canada and the UK and secondary international markets during the event to discover 
joint opportunities to work together in 2024-2025. Charleston, SC 



3/13/24, 4:29 PM southernliving.com/beach-getaways-for-whole-family-8585086?print

https://www.southernliving.com/beach-getaways-for-whole-family-8585086?print 1/2

Traveling to the beach with a big family or a group of friends? If so, you might want to consider what over 500 million
vacationers around the world swear by: the large vacation home, a game-changing vacation trend that’s here to stay.

That’s because multigenerational travel is on the rise, as people of all ages combine family-time with vacation-time. No one
wants to knock on hotel room doors or schedule meetups at restaurants; at the same time, they don’t want to share
bathrooms or sleep on squeaky sofa beds. The solution is a large home equipped for a big family, the more amenities, the
better.

For travelers looking to bond with family and friends while enjoying the sights, sounds, and Üavors of the sea, a beach house
is the perfect answer. These rental homes across the South have large common spaces to bring big families together and
private retreats where everyone can recharge.

St. George Island, Florida
This 28-mile barrier island in Florida’s panhandle was ranked Number 1 Beach in the Nation by Dr. Beach himself, Stephen
Leatherman. The sand is white, the water is blue, and even the loggerhead turtles know it’s the place to be – it is the largest
nesting beach in the Panhandle. Forty-Ûve percent of the island is state park, so there’s more than your usual opportunities
to hike nature trails, Ûnd perfect conch shells, and enjoy quiet solitude. The town is quintessential Old Florida, and the locals
like it that way. That’s why you’ll Ûnd beach houses rather than high rises and hotels. 

The best place to choose the perfect family home is through Collins Vacation Rentals. They just celebrated their 50th
anniversary on the island and can help you decide among their inventory of 270 homes, from Old Florida cottages to
beachfront mansions. Since there is no major development in St. George Island, you can sit on a deck big enough for 20, look
up at the dark sky Ûlled with stars, and listen to the waves pound the shore just feet away. Pedal the beach on your
complimentary bikes, or choose a home that comes equipped with golf carts to take you from one end of the island to the
other. 

For more info: collinsvacationrentals.com

Gulf Shores, Alabama
It may be on the southernmost tip of Alabama, but Gulf Shores is still surprisingly easy to reach. It’s a short drive from
several major southern cities, and if you prefer to Üy, it’s relatively equidistant from Pensacola International Airport and
Mobile Regional Airport. Many visitors come here for renowned golf courses like Kiva Dunes and the Arnold Palmer-
designed Craft Farms Golf Resort. But a range of offerings for all levels of activities abound. Take a dolphin watching cruise
or go parasailing. Sign the whole family up for a class at Sand Castle University. Laugh with the kids at Waterville USA water
and amusement park. Or have an angling competition off the longest Ûshing pier in the Gulf of Mexico.

It's all convenient when you book through Kaiser Vacation Rentals and stay in one of their 37 family homes. If you arrive by
electric car, no worries – 14 of the homes have EV stations so you don’t have to waste valuable vacation time searching for a
charge. And talk about a time saver – all of their homes have keypad locks so there’s no check-in process, allowing you to go
straight to your home. Home automation allows you to preset thermostats and lights, and a guest portal provides
information about the local area and allows you to communicate directly with Kaiser if you run into any snags. 

For more info: kaiservacations.com

Outer Banks, North Carolina
One of the biggest draws to the Outer Banks is that it doesn’t just bring pristine beaches – it’s loaded with history (the Ûrst
English settlement in America!). The Wright Brothers’ inaugural powered Üight took place here, and 10 acres of beauty and
history are preserved at the Elizabethan Gardens. The historical signiÛcance of this area of the country is only made more

4 Beach Getaways With Homes Big Enough For The
Whole Family
By  Rebecca Deurlein |  Published on February 28, 2024



3/13/24, 4:29 PM southernliving.com/beach-getaways-for-whole-family-8585086?print

https://www.southernliving.com/beach-getaways-for-whole-family-8585086?print 2/2

special by its beautiful beaches. According to the Currituck Tourism Bureau, about 20 percent of vacationers in the Outer
Banks have visited more than 20 times.

This area, known as OBX, is also famous for its rental homes – 20,000 of them, in fact. It can be a bit overwhelming, but
Twiddy & Company Vacation Rentals will take good care of you. Options range from smaller cottages to luxurious estates -
including one with 36 bedrooms that sleep more people than any other home in the Outer Banks. More than 50 percent of
Twiddy home renters become repeat guests, with about one-third choosing to stay in the same home every year. It’s the
type of company that helps families create traditions that are passed down through the generations.

For more info: twiddy.com

Galveston, Texas
There’s an impressive depth of history in Galveston, making it quite different from your typical beach community. The
architecture, the museums and homes preserved by the Galveston Historical Foundation, and even the storm-ravaged tree
trunks that have been carved into beautiful sculptures speak to a town that honors its heritage. And Galveston also has a lot
of local Üavor, with unique shops and restaurants, antiquing, a carnival on the water called Pleasure Pier, Moody Gardens,
regular festivals, and art classes, all in an easily navigable town. Every generation can Ûnd something to do – and you don’t
have to go far to Ûnd it. 

The West End of the beach is known as a quiet respite from all the action, where you can enjoy the peace of Galveston Bay
but be in the heart of the town in under 10 minutes. Rent a home from Sand ‘N Sea, a family-owned business since 1974,
take a stroll out onto the deck (the greatest draw for most renters), and you’ll see why their homes are so popular. You may
look down on your private pool or hot tub, or eye your personal grill with a mind toward cooking up the Ûsh you just caught.
Either way, you’re in a private enclave. Sand & Sea’s long history in the area comes in handy, as they can connect you to
someone who will help set up beach equipment, guide you on a tour, or create a private celebration in your vacation home. 

And why not celebrate? You’re with the people you love the most in a beautiful home away from home.

For more info: sandnsea.com

Was this page helpful?



3/13/24, 4:08 PM Inner peace on Outer Banks

https://read.nxtbook.com/global_golf_post/global_golf_post/20240226/destination_outer_banks.html 1/6

Inner peace on Outer Banks
‘Yankee hippie’ returns to find soothing mix of golf and nature on N.C. coast

BY JOHN STEINBREDER

MANTEO, NORTH CAROLINA | Sometimes, a golf trip is about much more than golf.

Maybe it is the cultural allure of a community that also happens to have a course or two in town. Perhaps the natural
beauty of a locale is what beckons as strongly as the layouts that exist there.

The journey also could be as much about a stroll down memory lane as anything else. Which was what my recent
expedition to the Outer Banks of North Carolina was all about.

Years ago, I had called this part of the world home. Not for long, mind you. But the three months I spent here in the spring
of 1974 as a long-haired high school senior measuring and monitoring beach erosion as an intern for the National Park
Service nonetheless remains a favorite period in my life.

For scenery that included rugged sand dunes, vast stretches of ocean and lighthouses overlooking waters so perilous
that they came to be known as the “Graveyard of the Atlantic” for all the ships that went down here, to say nothing of the
sunsets that presented vivid and varied canvases of reds, yellows and oranges most eves.

I also relished all I was able to do when I was not on the clock. Such as casting for stripers and blues from the beaches
along the Oregon Inlet, savoring the salt-scented breezes as I waited for a bite and watching seabirds hover over schools
of bait fish.

When I wasn’t on the water, I was often in bait and tackle shops, talking with local anglers about the best places to wet
my lines and the ways my quarry reacted to dixerent tides, weather and winds. In time, I became friendly with a few of
those folks, but only after they got over the fact that I was both a Yankee and a hippie, two things that did not exactly
endear me to most Southerners back then.  

Kilmarlic Golf Club
JEFFREY BERTCH



3/13/24, 4:08 PM Inner peace on Outer Banks

https://read.nxtbook.com/global_golf_post/global_golf_post/20240226/destination_outer_banks.html 2/6

Sometimes I drove about 15 miles
north to the village of Corolla to
watch its wild horses frolic on the
beach. On other occasions, I
wandered around Kill Devil Hills to
the south, where the Wright brothers
made their famous first flight in 1903.

I also visited the Fort Raleigh
National Historic Site outside this
town of 2,000 residents. It was where
a group of English men, women and
children established the Roanoke
Colony in 1587, in an expedition
funded by Sir Walter Raleigh himself.
That same year, Virginia Dare
became the first English person born
in the New World. But when another
group of settlers arrived in the area in

1590, they discovered that the Roanoke colonists had vanished without a
trace. The disappearance remains a mystery.

The internship provided me with my first taste of the small-town South, and I
was seduced by its easy pace and simple charm. One day, I ran into the actor
Andy Grixith in a hardware store. And I realized that if the fictional sherix of Mayberry made his home here, it really must
be a special place.

As for my duties with the Park Service, they entailed six weeks in its oxices outside Manteo researching the extent of
beach erosion over the decades, largely by poring over aerial photographs, and then an equal amount of time in the field,
measuring erosion over that 200-mile stretch of barrier islands – from Virginia Beach, Virginia, to Cape Lookout, North
Carolina – that make up the geographical formation known as the Outer Banks. That last part of the job entailed
spending entire days working on the beach, from sunrise to sunset, and sleeping every now and then in shacks erected
by fishermen.

It was, as one can well imagine, a wonderful gig.

The Yankee hippie, circa 1974
COURTESY JOHN STEINBREDER

Wright brothers memorial
COURTESY OUTER BANKS VISITORS BUREAU



3/13/24, 4:08 PM Inner peace on Outer Banks

https://read.nxtbook.com/global_golf_post/global_golf_post/20240226/destination_outer_banks.html 3/6

But as much as I relished that experience, I had been able to return to the Outer Banks only one other time since my
internship. And that was some three decades ago. So, I jumped at the opportunity to come back – and to bring my wife,
Cynthia, and my golf clubs.

To be sure, I was going to be retracing some familiar ground. The golf element, however, added something very new to
the expedition, as I had yet to take up the game in 1974 and knew nothing about the sport as it existed down here.

But I am always up for checking out a new place to tee it up.

Local sources told me there were seven golf courses in the Outer Banks, and I secured tee times at three of them:
Kilmarlic Golf Club in Powells Point, Currituck Club in Corolla and Nags Head Golf Links in the town of that same name.

As for my accommodations, I reserved one of the Golf Village Cottages at Kilmarlic and put together a list of new sights
to see as well as old haunts to revisit.

I played my first round at Nags Head. Located in that bustling beach town ox Highway 12, it is routed along Roanoke
Sound and in and around clusters of modest beach houses, many of which boast weathered shingles. Four holes border
that body of water, with inland ponds coming into play, by my count, on 11 others.

Nags Head is a tight track that puts a premium on accuracy. It measures a mere 6,000 yards from the back markers, but I
quickly learned that like all layouts here, this Bob Moore course played much longer than the scorecard indicated due to
the near constant breezes ox the nearby Atlantic and the fact that we were truly at sea level. As a result, I still hit driver ox
of most par-4s and -5s.

I liked that the greens possessed plenty of spice and rolled fast and true. I also appreciated the fun and interesting shots I
had to hit throughout the round and the sense the course gave me of being on the Outer Banks. If I had had more time, I
would have gone right back out and played another 18 holes, especially given that I had Nags Head pretty much to
myself and completed my first 18 holes as a single in less than three hours. It also did not hurt that the temperatures were
in the high 60s.

The second course I checked out was at the semi-private Currituck Club, some 30 miles north in the town of Corolla. This
one was fashioned by Rees Jones, and both the layout and the real estate around it had more of an upscale feel. But that
did not necessarily make the experience any better. It was just dixerent.

Nags Head 
COURTESY IMPACT GOLF MARKETING



3/13/24, 4:08 PM Inner peace on Outer Banks

https://read.nxtbook.com/global_golf_post/global_golf_post/20240226/destination_outer_banks.html 4/6

And by dixerent, I mean the sandy-soil track played longer and harder than Nags Head. The first four holes at Currituck
were particularly tough, heading uphill in spots and into a two-club wind. And I had a hard time staying out of the many
bunkers that Jones had dug into the fairways and around the bentgrass greens. But I did not let a couple of early double
bogeys discourage me and soon began scoring reasonably well, enjoying not only the dixerent golf holes but also the
stands of loblolly pines and live oaks that grew throughout and the swathes of marshland on the west side of the track
and the Currituck Sound beyond it. Standing on the tee of the par-5 16th, I counted five duck blinds in the distance, and
those made me think of how this area was once a hotbed of wild goose and duck hunting and home in the early 20th
century to the Currituck Shooting Club, which in its time was the Augusta National of waterfowling.

Seeing those blinds, made of brown-blond reeds, prompted me to think of those days gone by. So did listening to the
chuckles of the mallards that traded across the sky. The glimpses I caught of ospreys and egrets only added to the allure.

Rees may have kicked my butt with his design, but he certainly picked an incredibly beautiful place to do so.

The last course that I visited, Kilmarlic Golf Club, may have been my favorite, for its sensible bunkering, interesting ground
and greens that possessed plenty of size and subtle yet testy undulations. I also liked the mix of holes and the dixerent
shots they asked me to hit, both fades and draws ox the tee as well as the occasional bump-and-run on my approaches.

Currituck Golf Club
LARRY LAMBRECHT



3/13/24, 4:08 PM Inner peace on Outer Banks

https://read.nxtbook.com/global_golf_post/global_golf_post/20240226/destination_outer_banks.html 5/6

I learned mid-round that the course designer, Tom Steele, was a landscape architect who had once worked for Tom Fazio,
which may have explained why the layout suited my eye so well. Clearly, Steele knew how to design a golf hole. I was
also struck by the stands of tall pines that rose throughout the property and how the early morning rays of sunlight
filtered through them.

My host this day was Bryan Sullivan, who founded and built the Kilmarlic Golf Club as well as the cottages. Now 59 years
old, he had moved to the Outer Banks with his family when he was 14.

“I grew up in Virginia Beach, where my father worked as an attorney,” Sullivan said. “He hated that job but loved golf and
ended up buying the Sea Scape Golf Links in Kitty Hawk with some friends and running it.”

“It was like the Wild West when we arrived. The area was pretty isolated and attracted a
lot of outcasts who came here to get away from someplace else. It was very much ox
the beaten path.”

BRYAN SULLIVAN, FOUNDER AND BUILDER, KILMARLIC GOLF CLUB

Sullivan learned to play at Sea Scape and became good enough to make the golf team at the University of North
Carolina. “I was an All-American my senior year,” he said. “I had won the North and South in 1983 and then went to UNC.
Davis Love III and I were in the same class and on the team together. But he left school after his junior year, and I stayed
on. I wanted to play pro golf like he did, but that never worked out.”

Along the way, Sullivan also learned to love the Outer Banks. “It was like the Wild West when we arrived,” he said. “The
area was pretty isolated and attracted a lot of outcasts who came here to get away from someplace else. It was very
much ox the beaten path.”

Much to Sullivan’s delight, the Outer Banks eventually became a pretty strong place for golf. “I truly believe the courses
we have compare favorably to anywhere on the East Coast,” he said. “There is amazing variety and beautiful scenery.
Good weather too, and good conditioning. And you also have the wind. There was a reason why the Wright brothers
came here to fly their airplane and not anywhere else in America.”

Discovering the good golf here was one of the highlights of my trip. So was being back on my old stomping grounds.

Kilmarlic Golf Club
COURTESY IMPACT GOLF MARKETING 



3/13/24, 4:08 PM Inner peace on Outer Banks

https://read.nxtbook.com/global_golf_post/global_golf_post/20240226/destination_outer_banks.html 6/6

After finishing my round at Kilmarlic, Cynthia and I headed south, past Kitty Hawk and Kill Devil Hills and down Highway
12 all the way to the iconic Cape Hatteras Lighthouse, located at the elbow of the Outer Banks. The drive took about 90
minutes, and we stopped several times at turnouts along the way to take quick hikes over the dunes and onto the
beaches. I did not say much to Cynthia on those occasions, content simply to take in the views as I also reflected on
being here half a century ago and surveying these very same stretches of sand.

It was good to be back.

Cape Hatteras lighthouse
COURTESY OUTER BANKS VISITORS BUREAU

     FEB. 26, 2024
  

FREE SUBSCRIPTION



3/13/24, 4:19 PM Culture and cuisine on Carolina coast

https://read.nxtbook.com/global_golf_post/global_golf_post/20240226/local_knowledge_outer_banks.html 1/5

Culture and cuisine on Carolina coast
BY JOHN STEINBREDER

DUCK, NORTH CAROLINA | When I lived here 50 years ago, Duck was little more than a
backwater that had nothing to oxer tourists other than its beautiful beaches. In fact, I
do not recall the town even having a restaurant. But today, it is a vibrant community
that boasts a strong culinary culture.

On two occasions, my wife Cynthia and I drove there for dinner. Our destination one
night was the NC Coast Grill & Bar, an airy spot with an open kitchen that put out
superb renditions of local favorites such as oven-roasted oysters and a blue crab dip
served with tortilla chips dusted with Old Bay seasoning. As for the cocktails we
enjoyed – a blood orange margarita for my wife and a honey almond sidecar for me –
they were as deftly mixed as anything I have ever sipped in New York City or San
Francisco.

Another evening, we headed to The Blue Point, which is regarded by many locals as
the best eatery on the Outer Banks. The cocktails we quaxed here (a barrel-aged
Manhattan and something called a Wright Flyer with bourbon, aperol, cardamaro and
lemon) were otherworldly, as were the shrimp and grits and the seared sea scallops
that followed.



3/13/24, 4:19 PM Culture and cuisine on Carolina coast

https://read.nxtbook.com/global_golf_post/global_golf_post/20240226/local_knowledge_outer_banks.html 2/5

We also lunched at the Village Table and Tavern, which was most notable for its well-
chosen craft beer menu, the luscious shrimp Po’ Boy I devoured and the salad Niçoise
with fresh, local yellowfin tuna that Cynthia relished. Another thing that we liked about
this spot: being able to eat, drink and be merry from a table set on a covered balcony
overlooking Currituck Sound.

The Golf Village Cottages at Kilmarlic are an excellent choice for accommodations on
a golf expedition to the Outer Banks. There are 18 units in this complex, with each one
featuring two bedrooms and two bathrooms as well as a full kitchen, living room and
back deck. The abodes, which sleep four comfortably, surround a lighted, 5,000-
square-foot putting green. And my place, which was named after Jordan Spieth, also
featured a grill and a trio of plasma televisions. Clean and comfortable, they were also
convenient to my golf, with the track at Kilmarlic Golf Club only a five-minute drive
away and the other courses I played some 30-40 minutes by car.

Seared scallops at The Blue Point.

OUTER BANKS VISITORS BUREAU



3/13/24, 4:19 PM Culture and cuisine on Carolina coast

https://read.nxtbook.com/global_golf_post/global_golf_post/20240226/local_knowledge_outer_banks.html 3/5

One thing to keep in mind with the golf cottages, though: they are very self-contained,
which means you must bring your own supplies, such as pods for the Keurig coxee
maker, half-and-half, sweetener and bottled water. Soap and shampoo, too.

Cynthia and I traveled to the Outer Banks in early November and enjoyed near-perfect
weather, with temperatures ranging from the lows 50s in the evenings to the high 60s
during the day. Just as pleasing was the utter lack of tourists, who generally flock here
in the summer months and make this area quite busy that time of year. The tee sheets
during our visit were nearly empty, too, which meant we had the golf courses more or
less to ourselves. No round took me more than three hours.

During the summer season, the Roanoke Island Historical Association puts on “The
Lost Colony,” a symphonic drama that tells the story of those first English settlers; the
birth in 1587 of Virginia Dare, considered the first English person born in America; and
the unexplained disappearance of the 117 men, women and children who lived there.
Written by Pulitzer Prize winner Paul Green, the production was staged for the first
time in 1937 in a theater set on the shores of Roanoke Sound. President Franklin D.
Roosevelt attended a performance in that inaugural year, which seemed appropriate
considering that the venue was built through his Depression-era Works Progress
Administration program.

Golf Village Cottages at Kilmarlic

COURTESY IMPACT GOLF MARKETING



3/13/24, 4:19 PM Culture and cuisine on Carolina coast

https://read.nxtbook.com/global_golf_post/global_golf_post/20240226/local_knowledge_outer_banks.html 4/5

The pearl of the Outer Banks is the Cape Hatteras National Seashore. Established in
1953 with monies donated by philanthropist Paul Mellon and managed by the National
Park Service, it protects vast parts of three barrier islands – Bodie, Hatteras and
Ocracoke – and runs more than 70 miles. The stretch is so narrow at points that
motorists along Highway 12 can see Pamlico Sound on one side of their vehicles and
the Atlantic Ocean on the other. Recreational opportunities abound throughout that
property, which boasts campgrounds, nature trails and some of the most pristine
beaches in the country. The kiteboarders who fly, literally, across the sound are
something to behold.

A nice afternoon diversion is a roughly
two-hour tour in a specially equipped,
four-wheel-drive vehicle of the beaches
outside Corolla where the area’s famous
wild horses roam. Descended from
Spanish mustangs that swam ashore
centuries ago where the ships in which
they were traveling ran aground on shoals
or broke apart on rocks, the equines oxer
visitors another way to enjoy the beauty of
the Outer Banks while appreciating the
history of this area. The outfitter we used,
Corolla Outback Adventures, provided a
first-rate experience.

For more information on the Outer Banks,

Highway 12 on the Cape Hatteras National Seashore

OUTER BANKS VISITORS BUREAU

Another day at the beach for the wild horses of OBX
CYNTHIA CROLIUS, GGP 



R
O

B
B

IE
 C

A
P

O
N

E
T

T
O

R
O

B
B

IE
 C

A
P

O
N

E
T

T
O

SOUTHERN LIVING XX

 D
INERS CAN OFTEN FEEL  
frozen in time, but while 
Poole’s features retro 
chrome edging and red 
artificial-leather stools 
and booths, you won’t 
find the waitstaff wear-

ing old-school uniforms. Instead, tattooed 
servers shuffle around under dim lighting 
to a Phoebe Bridgers soundtrack. They’re 
happy to walk you through the long list of 
craft beers or to help decipher the hand-
written chalkboard menus. Chef and 
owner Ashley Christensen offers thought-
fully modern takes on comfort food, be it 
roast chicken or potato salad. There’s not 
a speck of iceberg lettuce or a sticky 
Heinz bottle (dating back to who knows 
when) in sight. 

“My dad was a truck driver and went to 
all these different cities. A diner was a 
place where he always felt like he spoke 
the language and would be welcomed,” says 
Christensen. 

BEST BBQ JOINT

Lexington  
Barbecue
The Piedmont region of North 
Carolina has its own signature 
’cue, and Lexington Barbecue is 
perhaps the quintessential prac-
titioner of it. Forget slow-smoked 
brisket, ribs, and chicken. That’s 
not what folks in Lexington mean 
by “barbecue.” Here, the word 
translates to something very 
specific: pork shoulders cooked 
on big brick pits over glowing 
hickory coals. The finished meat 
is chopped or sliced and dressed 
in the thin vinegar-and-tomato 
sauce that locals call “dip.” Add 
the region’s unique red-tinged 
slaw and some golden brown 
hush puppies on the side, and 
you have all the makings of a 
perfect North Carolina meal. 

—Robert Moss

2. Wilber’s Barbecue Goldsboro  3. Stamey’s 
Barbecue Greensboro  4. Sam Jones BBQ 
Raleigh and Winterville  5. B’s Barbecue 
Greenville  6. Red Bridges Barbecue Lodge 
Shelby  7. Longleaf Swine Raleigh  8. Skylight 
Inn BBQ Ayden  9. Shepard Barbecue Emerald 
Isle  10. Jon G’s Barbecue Peachland

XX  APRIL / 2024

OF THE SMATTERING of 
beacons that dot the North 
Carolina coast from Brunswick 
to the Outer Banks, the one 
at Cape Hatteras is the most 
recognizable of all. In fact,  
at 198 feet from ground to 
lightning rod, it’s the tallest 
one in the country. Folks 
come from all over the world 
to marvel at its imposing size 
and the area’s scenic beauty, 
but the structure has never 

BEST LIGHTHOUSE

CAPE HATTERAS 
LIGHTHOUSE

Although Poole’s is more hip than the 
places her father frequented, it—like any 
good diner—appeals to all ages, from young 
couples sitting at the counter scrolling 
Zillow listings to families sharing moun-
tains of Macaroni Au Gratin (Christensen’s 
famous version of mac and cheese, shown 
below). While the dish might sound fussy, 
it hits all the same notes as the classic but 
with calculated refinements, like using 
Jarlsberg and Grana Padano cheeses in 
addition to sharp white Cheddar. She also 
broils it so the top becomes an irresistible 

caramelized crust. Over the past 17 years, 
her food has evolved, but the core mission 
has not: “Meet people at a place of comfort, 
but then take them beyond that.”  

Aside from redefining homestyle staples, 
Christensen has her own perspective on 
Southern hospitality. A rainbow mural  
on the side of the building that houses both 
Poole’s and its sister restaurant Poole’side 
Pies reads, “All are welcome.” And it’s not 
just a platitude. Painted by Poole’s bartender 
and mixed-media artist Luke Buchanan 
(Christensen’s first employee), it reflects 
her goal of creating a business where the 
door is always open. 

The mural went up after the passing of 
North Carolina’s House Bill 2 (HB2), which 
required everyone at public facilities to use 
the bathroom corresponding to the sex on 
their birth certificate. The exclusionary pol-
icy, later repealed, aimed to make it more 
difficult for transgender people who hadn’t 
or couldn’t alter their birth certificates to 
use restrooms that matched their identities. 

Another colorful display by the entry 
proclaims, “Don’t forget kindness.” During 
the contentious 2016 election, an earlier 
iteration said, “Don’t forget to vote.” Some 
may say that food and politics don’t mix, 

but at Poole’s, they come 
together to create a space 
where strangers turn into 
fast friends and regulars 
become supporters of not 
just the business but also  
the artists who moonlight as 
bartenders there. Like the 
menu, Christensen pushes 
hospitality beyond the status 
quo, and her restaurant is 
all the better for it. 

—Alana Al-Hatlani

Rick Monk is a co-owner 
of Lexington Barbecue.

Customers order 
from chalkboard 
menus at Poole’s. 

BEST DINER

Poole’s 

TOP 10
BEST SMALL
TOWNS 

1. Blowing Rock   
2. Beaufort   
3. Boone   
4. Hendersonville   
5. Mount Airy 
6.  Southern Pines   
7.  Black Mountain   
8.  Highlands   
9.  Lake Lure   
10.  Banner Elk

NORTH CAROLINA 

lost sight of its important job 
of protecting ships and sailors 
from an extremely hazardous 
section of the coast. When it 
was first built in the 1800s, a 
three-person staff managed 
the lighthouse, refueling the 
lamp and keeping watch 
overnight. Today, its operations 
are fully automated, so the 
real work is in accommodat-
ing the half a million or so 
guests who visit each year. 

Although the interior is 
currently closed for a $19.2 
million restoration project (and 
likely won’t reopen until 2026), 
you can still snap a photo of 
its iconic exterior. For a peek 
inside, watch a virtual tour by 
the National Park Service  
to see the black-and-white 
checked marble floors and 
the cast-iron spiral staircase’s 
31 flights of steps. 

—Tara Massouleh McCay


	March Cover
	March 21 2024 BOARD AGENDA
	Board February 15, 2024
	Budget & Finance
	amendnent
	M & O Graphs
	bf1 (1)
	bf2 (1)
	bf3 (1)

	Fireworks Recommendations
	GYAM Extension
	Event Grant Recommendations
	Dashboard
	Community Engagement
	Public Relations
	Mar 2024 Board Packet PR Final
	Mar 2024 Board Packet PR
	southernliving.com_beach-getaways-for-whole-family-8585086_print
	Inner peace on Outer Banks
	Culture and cuisine on Carolina coast

	27760_North Carolina_Pooles_final

	TOURISM SALES 
	TOURISM SALES ACTIVITY-Board Report 032124.pdf
	Spring Market Flyer-1.pdf
	Soundside Event Site 2024 Calendar - Mar 24.pdf




